
Council Meeting Minutes 

December 9, 2025 
Present:  

Council: Carl Etnier, Steven Farnham, Jeff Roberts, Giles Brule (Online), Greg 
Gerdel, T Gram (Online), Catherine Lowther (Online), Mark Seltzer, Leesa Stewart 

Staff: Mary Mullally, Jess Knapp, Rowan Sherwood, Elly Wood, Tom Wright 
(departed at 7:23PM) 

Facilitator:  Elly Wood 

Guests: Stephani Kononan (Arrived 7:30:47PM, departed 7:49:27PM) 

Audio (Timestamps in blue indicate where audio corresponding to a given 
paragraph can be found in the recording.) 

1. Commencement 5:30:39PM (0:00:04) 
Carl called the meeting to order, welcoming 
Council members, and staff. There were no 
guests present at the beginning. 

2. Agenda Review 5:31:45PM (0:01:16): 
Carl asked to remove committee reports, 
and executive session from the agenda, 
substituting a five minute group photo 
discussion in their place, and to remove 
minutes from consent agenda. He also 
needs a vote on the calendar, which was 
listed on the agenda as discussion only. 

3. Check-in 5:33:30PM (0:02:55): 
Elly asked each person to recall a recent 
small win. Wins included kids arriving in 
Thailand, enjoying winter recreation, 
family reunion, a successful completion of 
½ of the Holiday season, achieving fitness 
goals, a career-related success, a warm 
home, co-op employee parking at 707, 
improved family relations, retention of 
wind-blown skis, moved firewood, seasonal 
resilience, and preparation. 

4. Community Comments 5:40:01PM 
(0:09:26): 

None. 

5. Consent agenda 5:40:22PM (0:09:47): 
Jeff moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Leesa seconded. Ayes: 8, Nays: 0, 
Abstentions: 0. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

6. November Minutes 5:41:12PM 
(0:10:37): 

Carl listed some edits he wanted in the 
November minutes. There were no 
objections to these. There was discussion 
about the type and level of detail in the 
minutes. Carl moved to approve the 
minutes as amended. Leesa seconded. 
Ayes: 8, Nays: 0, Abstentions: 0. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

7. Financial report: First quarter 
statements  5:51:22PM (0:20:48): 

Mary reviewed the FY26 Q1 income 
statement: Gross sales $7.8M (⇧2.8%), Net 
Sales $7.6M (⇧2.6%), CoGS $4.8M, Margin 
35 .1% (⇩0 .1%) , Counc i l (⇩0 .1%) , 
EBITDAP $119,000, Net Income $123,980 
(⇩0.4%). 
Tom explained inflation adjustments, 
stating that it’s a profit and loss statement 
exhibiting FY25 with FY26 converted into 
FY25 dollars, thereby removing inflation 

https://hungermountainco-op.app.box.com/s/p2r7vv4incyw60kgmbroivyo66x2bbs1


from the data. The CPI for food at home at 
September end was 2.7%. With the 
inflation adjustment,: Sales ⇩ $10K, Gross 
Margin ⇩$4K, Expenses ⇩$3K, making 
the year over year comparison slightly 
better. 
Balance Sheet: Cash and cash Equivalents: 
⇩$425,000 (mostly result ing from 
purchasing 707). Short-term investments 
will convert to long term as the treasury 
bill portfolio migrates to Maple Capital 
(≈$800,000 this quarter). Property and 
plant has increased (building purchase and 
new HVAC), assets ⇧$205,717, Current 
Ratio ⇩ (2.5), Debt:Equity ⇩ (0.34). 
Greg inquired about the ratio of member 
spending to non-member. ≈80% is member. 
Noting the treasury bills converted to real 
estate, Carl inquired how that is reflected 
in the statements and if it changes. No, (in 
response to a clarification request from 
Steven), not even if there is a city 
reappraisal that significantly increases the 
appraised value. The value that stays on 
the books is the value at purchase. 
Carl mentioned that if historical inflation-
adjusted data is available, that would be 
helpful. T suggested including hyperlinks 
in the financials to definitions of certain 
line items. 

8. Monitoring Report: L5 Financial 
Condition, L7 Protection of Assets 
6:10:33PM (0:40:00): 

Mary reported compliance in all parts of L5 
and L7. The current ratio, debt to equity 
and co-score all clear their benchmarks by 
comfortable margins. Steven inquired 
about the difference between the interest 
rate, and the Federal Home Loan Board 10 
year interest rate plus 1.35%. The rate 
charged to the Co-op by the bank is the 
former, while the latter is a benchmark 
rate, to which we compare the bank's rate. 
Mark asked about the parking contracts 
with the city: Now that the Co-op has 
additional parking at 707, can we dispense 
with these contracts? Mary explained that 
not being entirely certain 707 will continue 

to be used for parking, she did not want to 
surrender those contracts yet. Discussion 
ensued about how to recover the cost with 
Mark suggesting negotiating a lower rate 
to reserve an option to re-instate the 
contract, and Steven suggesting keeping 
the contract and sub-letting the space back 
to the city with no funds changing hands 
either way. 
Jeff moved to accept the Monitoring 
Report. Leesa seconded. Ayes: 8, Nays: 0, 
Abstentions: 0. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

9. P o p u l a t i n g 2 0 2 6 C o u n c i l 
Committees  6:27:08PM (0:56:32): 

After lengthy discussion about various 
committee roles, responsibilities, and 
charters, the following committees were 
populated thus: 
Development: Jeff, Mark (Lead), Leesa 
Engagement: Steven (Lead), Greg*, T 
Governance: Steven*, Catherine? Leesa 
(Lead) 
HMCCF Advisory: Giles 
Strategic Planning: Giles*, Jeff 
Sustainability: Greg, T, Catherine* (Lead), 
Amanda, Mark* 
*Indicates the individual’s first choice 
“Leads” are the individuals charged with 
organising each committee’s first meeting. 
Jeff moved to affirm the Committee Slate. 
Leesa seconded. Ayes: 8, Nays: 0, 
Abstentions: 0. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

10. Counci l Calendar 6 :57 :56PM 
(1:27:23): 

Carl explained that the new Council 
calendar differs little from the previous, 
noting there will be no July and August 
meetings, but there will be two meetings in 
June; all other monthly meetings are on 
the second Tuesday, with the fourth 
Tuesday being reserved if needed. 
Steven moved to approve the calendar. 
Leesa seconded. 



Mark suggested adding the Council 
Calendar to Outlook. Steven suggested 
posting it on the website. 
Ayes: 8, Nays: 0, Abstentions: 0. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

11. Co-op Vision 7:02:11PM (1:31:35): 
Jeff briefed the Council on the Vision 
Committee’s process and product, and 
asked for comments and questions. At the 
January meeting, the  council will evaluate 
the substance of the proposed revisions to 
the Ends Policies; the purpose of this 
discussion is to ask clarifying questions 
ahead of the January discussion. 
Steven suggested making End Policy 1 
more general to allow for the co-op to enter 
markets other than groceries, and goods; 
e.g., services. Leesa asked if (as written) 
owning a gas station is precluded. No. 
Leesa inquired if End Policy 2 should be 
broader, e.g.: “our community is informed 
about its purchasing choices and the 
impacts of those choices.” If the objective is 
for the community to be informed, Steven 
asked if that would include broadening 
awareness of various political issues. Carl 
explained that a fifth End Policy has been 
drafted which is intended to address this. 
Mary mentioned that for monitoring 
reports, she needs to  be able to measure 
compliance, and asked everyone to bear 
that in mind. 
Indicat ing that Counci l members ’ 
commitment is primarily to the Co-op’s 
members, Steven asked why End Policy 3 
states “Local businesses have access to 
trusted regional partnerships, fair pricing, 
and a stable market.” [Emphasis added] 
Why is it the Co-op’s obligation to provide a 
“stable” marketplace for other businesses? 
Giles clarified that this is about our local 
farmers, vendors, and the local food 
economy. Leesa added that “ local 
businesses” could mean any she encounters 
when she walks downtown, and she’s not 
seeing how they enter into this. Carl 
answered that this way of expressing it is 
trying to be more inclusive. 

Catherine mentioned the carbon inventory 
as a way of measuring ends policy 
compl iance . Greg ment ioned that 
purchasing [e.g. office supplies] from a 
franchise business is likely cheaper than 
from a local supplier, posing the question of 
how that fits this policy. 
Jeff briefly touched on the new End Policy 
5, and invited input between now and 
January. 

12. Break 7:22:38PM (1:52:03): 

13. Presentation: Vermont Foodbank  
Stephani Kononan, Marketing and 
Promotions Manager. 7:30:47PM 
(1:52:15): 

After being introduced by Mary, Stephani 
added that she’s been a member of HMC 
for ≈13 years, and previously employed by 
the Co-op for almost a decade. She serves 
on the strategic giving team working with 
businesses interested in partnering with 
the Co-op to raise food, funds, and 
awareness, and thanked the Co-op for it’s 
role in the Neighbours Helping Neighbours 
campaign, noting that every dollar raised 
enables four dollars’ worth of benefit to 
recipients. 
The Vermont Foodbank is Vermont’s only, 
and the largest distributor of charity food 
in Vermont, partnering with more than 300 
organisations, and distributing 14 million 
pounds of food annually, serving more than 
70,000 individuals monthly. 
According to Stephani, USDA reports an 
increase in food insecurity for the second 
year in a row; two of five Vermonters are 
food insecure. Visits to food access sites 
have increased between 20% to 110% over 
the past year. Federal changes will reduce 
access to these programs, and Stephani 
stated there’s no way local efforts will be 
able to accommodate the increase in 
demand. 
Sourcing from >200 Vermont farms, the 
Foodbank keeps more than $1M circulating 
in the Vermont economy, and working with 



200 network partners, it awarded $1.3M in 
community grants last year. 
Long term, the Foodbank's government and 
public affairs lead, working with state 
government and other partners, is vying 
for system change to create a statewide 
Hunger Free Vermont plan. Stephani 
concluded by emphasising her appreciation 
for the Co-op’s support of the Foodbank’s 
work. 
Jeff asked what the Co-op could do that 
would be most helpful to the Foodbank. 
Stephani responded that the importance of 
what the Co-op is already contributing 
cannot be overstated, but there might be 
other opportunities. 
Steven asked Stephani to describe how the 
Foodbank envisions making all Vermonters 
food secure. Stephani, being new in her 
role, is not entirely familiar with the 
“roadmap,” but mentioned her colleague, 
Carrie, the Foodbank’s voice in the 
Statehouse, who conducted an advocacy 
training for all the Foodbank’s partners on 
lobbying for the cause. 
Jeff asked if anyone from Hunger 
Mountain had ever testified in the 
legislature’s agriculture committees. Yes. 
Catherine asked Stephani if the Foodbank 
is familiar with the work of Helena 
Norberg-Hodge, the people of Ladakh, and 
re-localising food production. Stephani said 
no, but she’d research it. Referring to his 
work with Transition Towns Vt, Carl 
inquired if the Foodbank had ways to 
facilitate folks’ feeding themselves. 
Stephani again stated she’d need to learn 
more about that. 
Elly and the Council thanked Stephani for 
her presentation. 

14. C o n t i n u e w i t h c o m m u n i t y 
presentations? Guest Presentation 
Discussion 7:50:00PM (2:11:28): 

Council members agreed that continuing 
these presentations was a good plan. Mark 
suggested that they could present 
remotely, which would open possibilities 
beyond folks nearby. Steven suggested that 

guests could create videos for Council 
members to view prior to meeting, so that 
more information can be communicated, 
and  more   Council   meeting  time  can  be 
devoted to discussion and Q&A. Jeff added 
that if the presentations were recorded, it 
would make it easy to make them available 
to the membership. Giles suggested the 
speaker series might attract members to 
join the Council meetings. Mark suggested 
moving the speaker to the beginning of the 
agenda so members would “tune in” for 
that, and then stay for the balance of the 
meeting. Carl mentioned the Moscow Idaho 
Co-op’s success with a similar initiative 
that benefitted operations, and asked Mary 
if she felt these would benefit the Co-op as 
a whole, to which Mary responded in the 
affirmative. Carl stated that he’d like to 
learn more about the roadmap to food 
security. Catherine suggested bringing in 
Bill McKibben. Steven mentioned that 
there are abundant videos already made 
that could be viewed and create fodder for 
Council discussion. T suggested these talks 
are a means to building connections with 
other organisations. 
Jeff moved to continue presentations. 
Leesa seconded. Ayes : 8, Nays: 0, 
Abstentions: 0. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

15. Group Photo? 8:03:30PM (2:25:02): 
Carl asked if folks can appear in person at 
5:15 for the January 13th meeting for a 
group photo. Most of the group agreed. 

16. Denouement - Second Meeting, 
Action Items 8:05:15PM (2:26:42): 

It was determined that there will be no 
second monthly Council meeting this 
month. Mary reviewed the action items. 
Carl stated that the Development 
Committee is unlikely to meet before the 
January 13th meeting, and asked if Mary 
could secure the speaker for the January 
meeting, to which it was suggested (and 
agreed) to skip hosting a speaker in 
January on account of the Holidays. 



17. Meeting Evaluation 8:07:49PM 
(2:29:22): 

Council members’ comments on the 
m e e t i n g i n c l u d e d t h r i l l e d w i t h 
presentations, good orderliness, just ducky, 
good co l labora t i on /bra ins torming , 
discussions with interesting people, 
migraine didn’t come till the very end, 
looking forward to working on the vision, 
and consistently meeting metrics in the 
ends reports. Jeff reminded the group to 

review the Vision Committee’s work on the 
ends policies, and give feedback. It was 
requested that after the mid-meeting 
break, the meeting not resume until 
everyone is back in the room. 

18. Adjournment 8:12:15PM (2:33:48): 
Jeff moved to adjourn. Leesa seconded. 
Ayes : 8, Nays: 0, Abstentions: 0. The 
motion passed unanimously. Meeting 
adjourned at 8:12:26PM. 

Action Who Notes

 Plan for Council group photo at 5:15pm before 
January Council meeting on January 13th. 

Council

Determine details on how to proceed with outside 
presentations. 

Development 
Committee

Review Ends material from December meeting and be 
prepared to discuss at January meeting

Council

Look into creating an Outlook Council calendar Carl? 

Share long term sales adjusted for inflation Mary/Tom Done

Look into how to include financial definitions for 
financial statements

Mary/
Tom

We will likely include a 
glossary of terms with 
the statements. 

Consider frequency and form of financial statements 
and discussion 

Council

Highlight any changes in L5/L7 report to indicate new 
information

Mary

Coordinate first Governance committee meeting Leesa

Coordinate first Engagement committee meeting Steven

Coordinate first Sustainability committee meeting Catherine

Coordinate first HMCCF committee meeting Rowan


